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=18<.,9;2C.<, @.7=,=8@*;-<,27=.}T*E2B29% < B=1B;«727,5>-.- ;.,8072=2
$7-.9;27=6%4270,<4255< |

5

#1.,%.72,.,#;29,/8;,<.,87-,B.*;, *2280,.<F>-.F<.;2=>;7.-,/18;,=1»_/2;<=,
*7-,=884,95*,. 27, 5*=, =8+.;, - -,Sk2Ze-BlE 4 ¢ ==.279»,->;270, @12,1

s 5 s

-2;.,=5B . @2=1,%.72,.L< *;= *7-0321-2%,, =7~ _>N9.;=2%. 8/,=1.25=>=8;<,
7.82.6+.;, » @. @.;. 95.*<.- =8B/@ ;5,86.>-2K=8.B86 #1.

5

, 8>;=*>5-_ 7
;=,=8,8>;,12<=8;2,, ;27=,1886,=89<07%¥6*4260, @2=8,8>58,5.*;7,=;*-2
=.,172:>.<

7. *7>*%;B, » * 7.@,<=>-.7= 5."425®_.%1'8/, @8;45B89<_ 5*>7,1.-  #1
8998;=>72=B /8;,<=>-.7=<_/;86 560 .-2K,,288271¢; =% 98R*52<=_ <4255<
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E

5

87<.:;?2*=287

« #1., 87<.;?2*=287,-.9%;=6.7=L<,5820<®@2=2A7089F,<7.;<Ir=1.-;*5, ,87=
. @2=1, ,> 87<ce, 87<.;?2*=287.,8=*82% &88*,1<,<=>-.7=<,27785
,5.*7270,8/,=1., *92-*;2>6L<,,855.,=287
e 7, .,.6+.;, 87<.;?2*=287,<=>-.7=, 33FB¥7,.:-83 @*<#,",185*;», @2=1
<>998;=,=8@*;-<,1.;,<=>-2.<,*7-,727F*&*9 83" ,"=28-587,869;2<.-,8/,52
*985.87, 87*9*;=.» =1., >4. &.552PM=82**7-, 69;.<<,
e , 87<.;?2*=287,<=>-.7=, 1*;58==., B7*r. K, ¥0BZ<@®8%4?.8, K6.,,*L,6 <257

92,=>;.,/;*6.»,/;86,, » 58*7.- +B 2#H;*#MBL86*<, 5>6
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> 87<0e, 87<.;?2*=287 ,"=8725%880 1#>=8; *7-, ;=" 1885 $¥53m<I0s, 87<.:?2*=287 ., 884<_1

LBI*=272. ">i*, < <=>- T=d2WN* TFTE2=1,7%6.- *< * [27*5R.<=<2F-.=71=<,5.%;7270 ,*+8>= 5.

12.?7.,*7-, 55B &270%*=. "*>5 @8;427Q=*0., ;*/=<, @*;-< ,87<.;?2*=287,% -*B ,=;29 =8
#<>;>62 $72?.;<2=B 8;=1*69=87<12;.

-*B_9;%* =2 ,*5 @8;4<189,87,5.%=1.;,,87<.;?2*=287

8; =1. <=87.,68->5. 8/ ,=1.,<.,87.28288B/"=8BH<&88- *7-,  .,8:%*=27.,
<=>-.7=<_ @.;., *<<207.-. * ,866.68;:422 16" #5.7=%«B;z- 27 =1. ,;B9=
...7. .6.=.;B»_87..8/ =1.1 *072/25.72.%2,217¥,_86.7.- @2=127, 87-87_:

*7. L< ,"=>-.7=<,*<<.<<.-» 9:898%.-2*% B>=687=<,*7*=287 @84

5

7, *7>*;B, »,=1., ;=,",1885, 871 *=281l/. <F&=28>=. 8/, 87<.;?2*=2

7. .+;>*:B, ».<.,87-.B.* . > 8T<o888I.?9=2&=>-.7=<_@.7=,87,
=8, 8;=1*69=87<12;. =8, 72<2=_ 8%:.5<2=1< =B75.27=287 , *;6%=*7
<9.,2%*52<.- =*77.:B» =1., .*=1.; *Bt<=DP*=387>6.74,..*=1.;,;*/=» @1

@.;.,9;2?25.0.-,=8,+.,02?2.7,*,9;2?¢>,*78>5884 *E.;9;.6855.,=2+5.<
25-270 #>=8;, *7-, ;= ", 1885 *5>67*6l2*7< »7/9F715@<=x _Z7 =1.,
¥l=<, @*;-<, 27, =1 *=.08;B, K .;25*R7,.;,9F<=1*%;<1(.*;L , #1., ;=,
78627*=.-,12*7 27,,.,8072=287,8/.,8/.;,0289270 =7 127,:>.;, =.,172:>.<,
",1885» ,6*7B,8/, @12,1,*;.,.7-*70.;.- ,

L *7-. . B7<.;?*=287 , 884< *7- X9=.-<=132F=2% 1?22 >,=287, 8><., /8
?2.@,8/,*,-2<95*B,8/,;*;.5B,<..7,6*9x7*7,5*E5*85%5 /863 7% 1,
#1., ;2=*%*27 ><=;*52* "8,2. =B, -> *E287 #;><=,4188%0*6.,=80.=1.;,*
8//.;,127*7,2*5,<>998;=, =8, *, =*®.7<87 *@2=1< X ?@70<287,/8;, ,87<.;
7-.%*?8>;, @*;-, 2<,89.7,=8,*7, ><=x*52B787*=2A87*55,='§1885L<, E
87<.;?2*=287 ,"=87.»,&88-,1, .,8;*=BT7<"?2¥*28&78,,884<,1, *9.;,,8>;<.«
#@8,=12;-,B.*;, ,> 87<0me, 87<.;?29=288,*2287,%>888<,<=>-.7=<,=884
=1;.. @..4,%$;><12, 7=.;7<129,8?2 . *=H#L2>;%686$722.¥*42=B,27,(8481*6"
?.;,=1.,">66.;, 8/, »,<=>-.7=<, @I/TQ87,*QP*,;6.7B<,27,5>-270, =¢
*G*, ., 2+;*;B»,=1.,&.55,86., 855., =202 #N.!>><5>R /8%, ;..7<, 884<,
;2=2<1, ><.>6
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> 87<0e, *;?2270 ,&88-,%;227087<ee, *;2270 ,&88-,*:?2HB® (B>70,¥99827=.- *< =1..7.@
25-270,<=>-.7=, 8*77., ;86%270,<=>-.7=, *A 1. B785-<,@8;427%/, *;2270
*778>7,.- *<, * "# " 185*% 87,=1., ,%*<<87.,/8;, 785.

¥:2270

e #12;-,(.%;, , *;?2270 ,&88-,*;?2270,18@52107%#E>*717=8K=0;*->*=, 29
<=>-.7=,"2687,&12=@8;=1,@.;.,,8662%X.28L,-836B*¥B. =8<¥;?.,7.@, 8
;6<,/8;,=1., *55 /8;,;.,. 7=, *<=, *<=.;< |

-« #1.,<.,87-,B.*;,8/,*,,855*+8;*=2?,70/83287*@22<78589.,=B,27, .7=

,> 87<0e,&88-,*;?2270,*7-, 25-270,<<==87,%,?2*A* ), B785>,=287,8/,*,
*<<87.,/8;,=1.,,855.,=287

5

e #1., .9*%*;=6.7=L<,9%;=7.;<129, @2=1*@84@;,.89,.+;87=27>.- 27, »
7.@,<=>-.7=<,9;8?22-.-,@2=1,*9;87=,*77*Z1R.,-882%7,Q #85.,, "UA, * 1
6+*<<*-8; |

« 7. .,.6+.;, .&88-,*:2270.1, 25-270 ,8H37.7@*<8*T7T78>7,.- *< * "#. ",1

@2=1,/>7-270,<>998;= =8@*;-<,1.;,<=>-2.<
.« , *:?2270,<=>-.7=, 52C*+.=1, 55.7@@-87*#1>*5=2'<188%0.;<L, 869*7]|
.<207, ;2C. , .;,-.<207 , @255,+.,2%,8>0R 8= =Q69*%E_8/,=1. B.*; *=,

. .&88-,*;?2270,1, 25-270,<=>-.7=, 8*F¥. . -:80*71@*< N, .-2=287 .8/, 8>
6*0*C27.»,918=80;*91.-,27,1.;, @8.;8898®07*=1=19.8;=<%¢,8/,,8695.=27
B.*;,9;83.,=»_,18,2*55. 8;918<2<6,*7,8;7*=.,,*:2.-,/

e "=>-.7=<, >-2=1, .=,1/8;-,5 ;*- 297 ;/2<<=*9BZ70e*W@8 8*77., ;80*7 >
&88-,%;?2270, *7-, 25-270ce, @87,<.,87:-295*5, BH69*TB &§;<827.;<,1
*77>*5 7*=287*5 @88-,*;2270,,869.=2=287

. 7,">66.;, ,=1., ;=,",1885,*9982%=2=#86 @8>70_8/, *;?2270 ,#86,1*«
B.*;<,.A=.7<2?.,.A9.;2.7,.,*< * 5. 55220 *7.<40%,;>7.,12<,8@7,+><27
-.?2.589270,12<,=.%*,1270,9;*,=2,.70*?2781=*26]1"-1885,27,., » 1.
=1.,98<2=287,8/,".728;, .==.;2B0,<<2B7*58Bp. 1., 1*<, @8;4.-, @2=1
<>,1 *<_ =1., 2<16870.;<L, 869*7B» -=18B®%58B692B, 8385.05 ;..7@2,1»
855.0.,*7-,6*7B ,8=1.;<

c H@8, *;?270,<=>-.7=<», *=, 856.«x0m/2%22B0*;,;,1287,=>;*5, "=87.ce,
:8@7,><.,87-,B.*;, > 87<o0e, *;?2270, BBRIO0L2T0_*7.2; @8;4,*,,.9=

=1,*772?.;<*;B,.A12+2=287,8/851.=B2'=2<17==,-*55,83.,=
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,27., ;=,0;*->*=_"2687, .3.;,> 87<ce, 27., ;=,<=>-.7=,»> 87<0, 27., ;=,<=>-.7=, --2.
;.,292.7=,8/,=1., ", ¥27=.; "8922.;<58B-L<,27=.;?2.@877<>187.,8/,=1., @277.;<,8/,=1.
.,8;%=272.,">;/*,.<, .558@<129* 7, .Q;..,"18@<, >2-. ;..5%7-<, *27=270, ;2C.

27.. =
. ;8/.<<8;, 8;6*7, ,4:;8B-, L, 0@291L<*7=.878;*;B, .558@<129, ¢
",1885,27,".9=.6+.;, » 27,;.,807-B>x81W@8{412<,<207270,=1., ;=,",1

1886»,*7-,/8;,12<,*-?22<8;B,;85%;<9*7g2*+05,BL1270,B.1., ;27=,1886,*< *
/8;,=.%,1270,*7-,9;*,=2,.
#1., ;=,",1885,5*>7,1.-, * 7.@, .569&<¢1R9 58<*, ,82<=, 27, L #1
@8;4<, @2=127,=1., 5*<<,"=>-PBH27~2=278/ 8= F1L29B<B273,.<>998;=2"
7, 82.6+.;» *5>672» ,<=>-.7T=<AF2>E=B85<-_@38,;,4558@k.,,. ,&885@2,1,
;27=, *2,; ,#1., ;=,",1885L< *7g>*b,, N2C7*5@%;27-=6*4.;, .A12+2=270,
02?.7,=8, 27*, ;8<<»,9;8?722-27A885*B72~,,!8B6, @8,4270,*5870<2-., =
*7-,<=>-.7=< ,#1., ;=,",1885, ;27=@"&8@7, <188 < %-, *?*25*+5, =8, +
9;8,..-<,08270,=8,=1.,%$4;*27., >6*72=*;2*7, 99.*5

=,=1.,62- 9827=,8/,=1.,,8>;<.» 1, ,*27.2*5=,2K=8;2.<,<=>-.7=<,9;8->,
<l8@,*=,=1., ;=,",1885,/8;,=1.,<868B6>2=B/ &/8<F><.T=,=1.2;, @8;4,2°
/18;6*= |

,7.@,02/=,/;86,=1., 7=187B, *;8,.-7=8,<@998*E#7(8F7T@,272=2*=27.<,=¢
<=>-.7=<,@2=1,*,/8,><,87,<,>58=%,>5G844>,.752878B,=8,, +. *@*;-.-,=8,"
=12;-,B.*;, , 27., ;=,<=>-.7=» B, #59=%18¥B*B»,=8,+., *558,*=.- =
[..<,18;,*7, , 27., ;=,<=>-.7=

@, 0;*7=,<>998;=, @*<, <.,>;.-,=888/A%7-+=]1<*;B=97810;*66. , #1., 5E¢
>;<*: 2. <. @255,8//.;,*, |, 27., ;=2T=>-d=<=3%-,7%#_,/>7-270,/8;_/>55,18¢
<=29.7-,=8@*;-<,5272270,,8<=<_*7-,6%*=,;2*5<

, 27., ;=,<=>-.7=, *6255*, 25<1%87@.™<L272%2/B87;=2=5.-,1&1*=, 8, &.
=1., *;+2,*7, .7=;.,*<,9*;=,8/,=K.,29,88>60,.,,*7F=292984.,=8,=1.6.<, 8/,
186.,*7-,+.5870270

27*5 B.*;, , 27., ;=,<=>-.7=, -7#2=,-8M8K, AA*< ;7867 -<, *27=270, ;2C.,
<.5.,=.-,*<,87.,8/,=1., @277.;< ;8<<"sfu88%< *,;8@R7722=.-,=8,78627*=.
<=>-.7=»_,<>+62<<287<,*;., =1.7,+B2* B>, B/B7TBHB8><5EB», ,>;*=<8;<», 0*!
#1., ;=,",1885,2<,=1.,875B,*;=, @2885,=8,,,B-B,"1*<27,.,=1., ;2C., @*
L, 27., ;=,<=>-.7=<,"8912., 58B->*7;B"@*7.7ft1*=>;,.-,27,=12<,B.*;L<,
7/8;6*=287, 8 , .0;..,"18@<, >2-.
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#,><=..<5,1.98;=_,.(.*;,,=8, >

5

S H#1., ", *27=.; "=*27.:<

5

, 8 =BR<R9Y /&, .55 ,@*<,*@*;-.-,=8,
0;*->*=,, "2687, .3.; ,#1.,/.558@=8,29, £8,2%2<>8F,,42<,*<,025-270», /.
=;869.,5L8.25, *7-,<,*05285* *7=;928220. <K% ,;2+D52X87*5,  9;85.<<.<, (

6.7=8;270,/;86,=1., *27=.; "=*27.;<
o L, 27., ;=,(.%;, *T-, ,<=>-.7=<,8/K28;,Q0272<;266<18@,8/,=1.%X,@8;4,
.@<,27, *6-.7,#8@7,*<,9*;=,8/,7152,;,.9:812J2737*5,9
e ,*5>672,%*7-,87.,<=>-.7=,1*?2., +,9,.<72.028>48;,@1,.87=.698;*;2.<,=8:
, @, 87=.698;*;2.<,1*<,1.5-1*, 92A=<52.88B5.62F;*sB, *;=, <,.7.», <1
.6.;0270, *;=2<=<»,<86.,8/, @186, 1*27=+;86287N*5BB<=78@7.-, *;=2<
12<=8:;B
. 7, .+;>*;B, »,<.,87-,B.*;, 2/B* & 852 TE<,*<9.;, 27-<*B, =884,
%85>7=..;270,% , 2*687-, 772?.;<5;B;*2.7=285»¥2,1;,5,7*=287*55B , 7.
=1, />7-5%2< 5 % FT2%< 6.4 <> 284 -ABT 1B, @=L, *;=2<=<» *7- * <€
<.5.,=.-,/8;,*>,=287

5

>;<*;2.<» <,185*;<129<»,9;2C.< *7-,8=1.;,<>998;=

#1.,,87=27>.-,0.7.;8<2=B,8/,=1.,7,#*'5888bU/¢+6*7Q +.+>;<*; B, *@*;-<,8
> » . /8;,=1.,9;.728><, _687z6G%x +B1@&*B+8F287<=,%*9952,*=287<,/
<=>-.7=<,*68>7=.-,=8,*7 *--2=287*62I,,B.%; b8, =1.,27%=1.,9;,.228><,B.*;
,8>;<.,8/,=1., ,687=1<,=8, , >02<<, @.;»,0272+7,;<8,* =8=*5_8l/, ,<=>-
9,.?728><, B.*;e», ;.9;.<.7=270, 68;7==<1%87,, =27, ;=<+4885L<, >7-.;0;*-

55 15 »

98<=0;*->*=,,,8>;<.<,=8@"*;-<, @ 132",k 129 < >B9"8/,= <2489;26*;25B,-2;.,=.

/8;,,86270 B.*;< 1*?. *5<8 +..7 &I=27>. #8<=0%¢-,27,;.*<270,=1., *68>"

¥7- <,185%:<129 />7-270 *?2*25*+52=/B; <=>-.7=<_*<_* 9;28;
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7. %--2=287», -87*=287<_/;86 +.BNTB®,;20>J-z1.=1;=, ",1885, 2< *+5. =¢

s s

<=>-.7=< *7-,<2072/2,%*7=,<>998 <= 8@*<.%0,217297838,=%**B-_ 292=*5 269;87

<2072/2,*7=_,<>998;=
27 . 1.. +>:<*:B *@*;-< ,87=27>.-.=8_.7*+5.
’ ’ ’ ’ 8>;,8>=;.%,1,9;83.,=<
o
68;.. =1*7. 27, <=>-.7=< @2(1,.7<.,27,7>6+.; 8/ ,<=>-.7=<
+>:<*: B *7- . <,185%;<129,<>90.8:27270,/.. +>;<*;2.<

#1., ;=,", 1885, @8>5-,524., =8, =1*74>908;78552@Q 791 @ B8% . I¢<, .7<>
,87=27>*=287 _ *7- -.2.5896.7=_8/ 2.x< .-> *=287*5 * =222=
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8>7-*=287 27*, 8+*787? 18<=87<4B
77*, 58@-.7 ,#;><= 8:6*7. ,4;8B-, N
7=187B, *;8, .7=;. ;>., , .8-
;=2<=<L, 855.,=270,"8,2.=B >..7, 52C*+.=1,",185%,<129 #,;,><=
;=<,"8,2.=B,> *=287*5c 1*-,52/].,#;,><=
*o+*,* &1*%=68;., 1*;2=*+5. #;><=12,1*;-, ;8B-,
*=87, 27., ;=, ;2C. !180.;,-., ;.B, .68,;2*5, >7-
1;.7<, 8>7-*=287 18B*5, .6*5.,",1885,8/, ;=, 8>7-*=287
727<5.B, 8;-, 1*,2=*+5. #,><=, 18B*5, 2=.;*;B, >7-,>27,427-ce

", 8*%;-.8/,#;,><=..< "*7-B,1,)8;2,%, 5.7, 1*;2=*+5, ".==5.6.
1*;58==., 871*6 *;=.;, 1*;2=*+5."2;><#2<, *187, 8>7-*=287
2=B,1, >25-<, 8>7-*=287 "8>=1,":>%,;. #,><=
2=B,*7-, >25-<,8/, 87-87, 7<=2=%2=*75.B, 2,4.; #;><=
85*;= "=>*,= . *=1,6 1*,2=*+5.,".==5.6.7=
., *<Cb8, 8>7-*=287 ">;?7.B8;<L, 5>+, 1*,2=*+5. #;><=,
.4, 255, 8>7-*=287 "@2;., 1*;2=*+5. #,;,><=
2,4, 72*7< #*B58;, .*;,., =-
§ B5B, *;=., 1*;2=*+5. #;><= $727.,<2=B,8/,=1., ;=<, 87-87
(4. H#H><= %*7-.,?.55, 8>7-*=287
58;2*7, 2;,1.;,=C, %.72,.,27, .;25
y*1*6,*7-, 1;2<=27., .7<87 &8;<129/>5, 869*7B,8/, >25-.;<, .;,1*;
¥..02.=, 7<=;>=1.; &8;<129/>5, 869*7B .8/, *;9.7=.;< |
¥-5.B,#;><= 8;=87, 850*=., 1*,2=*+5. #,><=
2<=8;2,, 8><.<, 8>7-*=287 &8;<129/>5, 869*7B,8/, ;*9.;<
2?.;, ..;,227,427- &8;<129/>5, 869*7B,8/, B.;<

878>;*+5. "8,2.=B 8/, 7201=<,8/8&8,<1@297>5#*869*7B 8/, 2<16870.;<
->7 1¥?27-*%5_ .68:;2*5, .0* B, >7- &8;<129/>5, 869*7B .8/, ;8,.;<

* 4 *7-.;, 8>7-*=287 &8;<129/>5, 869*7B,8/, 827.;<,*7-, .2
8<.91, 85C.; &8;<129/>5, 869*7B,8/, *<87<, , ;*/=,
L1 #,><= &8;<129/>5, 869*7B .8/, *27=.;,"=*27.;
.?2.;1>56. #,;,><= &8;<129/>5, 869*7B,8/,"4277.;<
*<=,;, *;?.;<, <<8,2*=287

82.:7*7,.» <=:>,=>;. *7- 6*7*0.6.7=
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#1. ,>:;.7=_B.*; <*@ , />;=1.;, ,87<852<12D8B/8+1=1.8%6,-6 8/ #;><=..< /8

*7*5B<2< 8/, <4255< 7..-<, % . »V256 =7 AT-2<1; @K@ #:><=..<.@.;.,
/;86 =1. +.0277270,8/,=1. B.*; 820.=6..7=@82=421=17..@99;27,29*5_*7- .A_ 8
=1..:.=2:.6.7=_8/,=1. <=*// =;></=..8B7A.;.*5LB76[=8//2,. *7- =1. *99827=
<>,,.<<8; *7-,=1. :.22;.6.7=,8/,=1.9;8¢,7E*=22> . @18<.,*99827=6.7=,

"=>..7=<_.A92;.< 87 *7 *TT>*5 +*<2<

8558@270,=1.,;.<85>=287 8/, =1., 8%;228><=B. . *7=8/,8662<<287_ *, 8
1.22.@,=8,27/8:6,2=<,9;8,..-270< *T-*=6287<=B/_=1866/2,. /8; "=>-.7=<»

@*<, >7-.;=*4.7,+B, *7,27-.9.7-.7=2F02;-,L 9*2=R, 2759055, ;.,866.7-*=2¢
¥ ,.9=.- >7;.<.;?.-5B *7-,1*?. <27,. +..7,2695.6.7=.-
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! " #

#1. #,><=..<,*;.,-2;,.,=-8;<,8/,=1.,,869*7B,/8;,=1.,9>;98<.<,8/,=1., 869*
8/,=1., 1*;2=B,/8;,=1.,9>;98<.<,8/, 1*;2=B ,5.02<5*=287

#1. 8*%;- 2<. =1. 9852,B 6*4270,+8-B 8/ ,=1., ;= ",1885 = 2< *<<2<=.-
+B,=1., 8*;-  #1. 8*;- *5<8 89.;*=.<_=1;8>01,*, 7>6+.; 8/, ,8662==..
8662==.. ,1.6>7.;*=287, 8662==.. , 7?.<=6.7=, 8662==.. *7- 8627*=2¢

#18>01,=1., 8*;- ;.=*%27<,;,.<987<2+252=B,/8;,=1., *<<>;*7,.,8/,27<=_
,87=;85,8/,*,%-.62,,6%==.;<»,27,5>-270,=1.,<=;>,=>;.<»,9;8,.<<.<, *7-
@12,1,*,*-.62,,6*==.;<,*,. -.,2-.-,*7-,8?2.;<..7»,,;,.<2-.<, @2=1,*,*-.62,,
A.;,2<.-, =1;8>01, =1., ,*-.62,, 8*;-», *-?2<.- *7- <>998;=.-, +B, 9;8
,855.*0>.< *7- @2=1,=1.,277?85?2.6.7=,8/,<=>-.7=< _#1.,6 ,*-.62,, 8*;-
89.;*=.<,>7-.;,-.5.0*=.-,*>=18;2=B,/;86,=1., 8*;- , =,2<,<>998;=.-,+B,
*,1.8/,=1., ,*-.62,, .9*;=6.7=< _#1. "2=.1, 7?2:;876.7=_">+ 8662==..

» *5<8,;.98;=<,=8,=1. #;><=..<,=1;8>01,=1., >-2=_1,12<4, 8662==..

5

(, # M

B

#1., ;27,29*5,8/,=1., ;=,",1885» @18,2<,.A,8//2,28 #;><=..»,2<_,1*;0.-
@2=1,=1. #;><=..< *7-, @2=1,6*7*0270,=1., ;=,",1885L<, * *-.62,,*%,=27?2
8;0*72<*=287,87,*,-*B =8 -*B,+*<2< ["1.,2<,*<<2<=.-,27,=12<,+B,=1.,
+B,=1., .*-<, 8/, .9*;=6.7=,1/8;,.*,1,8/ , ,,.<<,=8, .*;7270 , ;=, 2<=8;z
8>7-*=287 ,*7-, *;?2270 ,@18», *5870, @2=1,=1., .*-, 8/, 27*7,.,*7-, .*
1.5*=287<»,/8;6,=1.,".728;, *7*0.6.7=,#.%6

7,%--2=287»,=1.;.,*,.,/>7,=287*5,1.*-<,,.<987<2+5.,/8,;,<>9.,?2<270,,.
"2=., *7T*0.;», 2+4;*%;2*7», ;*@270,"=>-28, *7*0.;,*7-, ;27=,1886, *7*0.;

#1. ;.6>7.;*=287 .8/ 4.B_ 6*7*0.6.7=,9.;<877.5,*<,@.55,%*<,=1.,87.;*55

*99;87?.-,+B,=1., #;><=..<,=1;8>01,=1.,!'.6>7.;*=287, 8662==.. ,1.6>7.;
9*B270,->.,;.0*;-,=8,6*;4.= ;*=.< *7-,<.,=8;,+.7,16*;4<

7,527., @2=1,=1., ;=,",1885L<,9852,B, @1.;.+B, <=>-.7=<_*;., 5*;0.5E
<9.,2*52<=,=>=8;<,*;,., .70*0.-,87 *7,*77>*5,8;,=.;6 +B =.;6,+*<2<,/8;,
@*B»,<=>-.7=<_%*,. .A98<.-,=8,* @2-.,7*;2.=B,8/,<9.,2*52<=,<4255<>»
@125<=,,87=27>2=B,8/,*,*-.62,,9;80;.<<,2<,.7<>;.-,+B,=1., .*-< 8/,
**¥-.62,,%,=2?22=2.<,527,5>-270,*%-6272<=;*=287»/27*7,.,*7-,-.2.5896.7
=.*6,;,.98;=270,=8,=1., .*-,8/,1.<8>;,.<, 1, 9.;*=287<

P #

5

#1. #:><=..<_ 1*?. *<<.<<.- =1. 6%*38; ;2<4< =8 @12,1 =1., ;=,",1885 2-
=8 %, %-.62, <=*T7-%;-< *7- ;.9>=*=287  <=>-.7=_;.,;>2=6.7=_*7-_127*7,2
@2=1, <=*=>=8:B, *7-, ;.0>5*=8;B, ;.:>2;.6.7=<»_ 27, 9*;=2,>5%;, =18<.
1.02<=;*=287 , 8>;<. ?2*52-*=287 *7- -.<207*=287 _ 86., [/2,. "=>-.7=_9

*=* 8= =287.1.0>5*=287< *7-, .*5=1 1 "*/.=B

2=B *7-, >25-<_8/, 87-87, ;="



55, *;,.*< 8/,;2<4,*;.,6872=8;.-,=1;8>01,=1., ;=,",1885L<,087?.;7*7,.,<=
;.<987<2+252=B,*7-,-.,2<287,6*4270,/8;,.*,1,*<9.,=,8/,=1., ;=,",1885
8662==..,,.<987<2+5.,/8;,;.?22.@270,!2<4,1.02<=.;<,*7-,,.98;,=270,=8,=

#1. #;><=..<, *7-,".728;, *7*0.6.7=,#.*6, .7<>;., =1*=_=1., ;=,",1885L<
*0*27<=,<2072/2,*7=,;2<4,=1;8>01,*77>*5,6872=8;270»,*,=287,95*772
;=,",1885,1*<,,869;.1.7<2?.,27<>;*7,.,,8?.;,*0*27<=,4.B,*;.*<,8/,;2<
7<>;*7,.,,8?.;,8/,>9,=8,1 6,*7-, 2;,.,=8;<L, 2*+252=B,,8?.;,8/,>9,=8
+><27.<<, 27=.;;,>9=287, 27<>;*7,., ,8?.;270, >9, =8, , 687=1<, 8/, /.
*,,8668-*=287,2<,27<>;.-,+B,=1., ;89.;=B ,#,;><=» *= 2=<_[/>55 ;. 27<=*:

7.%--2=287» *<, 9%;=.8/,=1., 1/2,.,/8; "=>-.7=<,*9952 *=287,9;8,.<<», =
95*%,. * "=>-.7=, :8=.,=287, 5*7» @12,1 -.=*25<.18@,=1., ;=.",1885, @2

B

<=>-2.<» <18>5- =1., ;= ",1885 /*,.  *7, .A=:.6., ,1*55.70.,5.%-270,=8_=8

#1., 8*;-,2<,<*=2</2.-,=1*= ,<B<=.6<,%*;.,27,95*,.,=8,62=20*=.»,8,,,87
.A98<>;., =8,=1.,;2<4<,6.7=287.-,*+87.

$ 1" "HH #

#1., ;=,",1885,*-1.;.<,=8,088-,<=*7-*;-<,8/,.=12,*5,/>7-;*2<270 , =<, 2
*7-,;,.22<.-,->;270, J¥7-,18;6*52<.<,=1., ;=,",1885L<,9;*,=2,.<,*7-,
;=,",1885,0;.*=5B,?*5>.<,=1.,<>998;=,2=_,.,.2?7.<,/;86,-878;< #1., 6*:
/;86,27<=2=>=287<» @12,1,=1., ;=,",1885,*99;8*,1.<,/;86,=26.,=8,=2
;.,.2?2.-,1,86,27-2?22->*5<»,27,5>-270,<=>-.7=,*5>672» @18,*;.,*99;8*
,8;;,.<987-.7,.»,.6*25 .8, *=,.?2.7=<

#1., ;=,",1885,-8.<,78=,*%99;8*,1,27-2?2->*5<,/8;,-87*=287<,@18,*;.,7
-8.<,78=, ,*7?*<_ 87,=1.,<=;..=,/8;,-87*=287< ,#1., ;=,",1885,-8.<, 7€
[>7-;%2<.,87,2=<,+.1*5/»_ *7-,78,,8695*27=<_1*?., +..7,;.,.2?2.-,%*+8>=
9.;<87*5,-*=* 2< 78=,<1*;,.- @2=1,*7B,=12;-,9*;=B» *7-,2<,<=8;.-,<*/.!
*=* :8=.,=2287,!1.0>5*=287<

B

"HO# #. #I$"# "L Vv # o

"=*=.6.7=,8/ #;><=..<L,;.<987<2+252=2.< 2<_ 27,5>-.- 27, =1. "=*=_1
7=.:7*5, 87=;85

L #ISH "

#1.,6.6+.;<, @18, ,*;.,27,8//2,.,*=,=1.,-*=.,8/,=12<,,.98;=,*,;.,52<=.-,87,
->;270,=1.,,8>;<.,8/,=1.,,.98;,=270,B.*;, @1.;.,*9952,*+5.,02?.7,+.58¢
8?2.,7*7,.

8. #;><=.. 1*< ;. .2?2.- *TB,;.6>7.;*=287,/8;,<.;22,.<_,*<_* 6.6+.;. 8/ =1.,

#1., "=*=.6.7=,8/, 8;98;*=., 8?2.;7*7,. *7-, 7=.;7*5,,87=;85,<.=<,8>=, =1
/18;,=1.,B.*;,.7-.-, , >0><=, L ¥7-,>9,>7=25,=1.,-*=.,8/,*¥99;8?*5, 8/, -
8=1.,@2<.,27-2,*=.-

2=B *7-, >25-<_8/, 87-87, ;="



# % " ' % # "

5 5 B 5

#1. ;=.",1885L< 8+3.,=27.< *;. <.=.=8_;./5.,=,2=<_.-> *=287*5 _*26<_*7
1*?..02?2.7,->., ,87<2-.;*=287 ,=8,=1., 1*;2=B, 8662<<287L<,0.7.;*5 0>2

5

<>995.6.7=*;B +.7./2=,0>2-*7,..87./...,1*;0270

#1. ;=.",1885L< 4.B,8+3.,=27.<_/8;,=1.,B.*; 27,5>-.-

$ #(, ., % ! #/(

5 5

#1., ;=,",1885,2<,,8662==.-,=8,<>998;=270,=1.,-.727.5896.7=,8/,27-27
1*?.,=1.,98=.7=2*5 =8, <>,,..-,27,2=<_,<>+3.,=< , =, +.52.2.<,27, =1
,866>72=B ,#1., ;=,",1885,,1*;0.<,/..<,*=,* 5.2.5,,866.7<>;*=. @2=1,=
=1*=,8//.;,1201.;,.->,*=287,27 *;=,*7-,-.<207 , 8=,*55,8/,=1., ;=,",188
58*7,<>998;=»,<8,2=,<..4<,=8,9;8?22-.,/27*7,2*5,<>998;=,=1;8>01,+>;
/;86,/>7-<,;*2<.-,<9.,2/2,*55B,/8;,=12<,9>;98<.,/;86,*, @2-.,;*70.,8/,,1
<=>-.7=<,27,=1.2;,8@7,<.*;,1,/8;,/127*7,2*5,<>998;= ,#1., 8*;-L<,9852
+*<2< . 8/,7..-,%7-,.->,*=287*5 *+252=B» <>+3.,=,=8,<>,1, ,;.<=;2,=287
-878;<,8/,=1.,/>7-<,*=,2=<,-2<98<*5» *7- @2=127,=1.,,*9*,2=B,8/,=1.,

#1., ;=,",1885,2<,,8662==.-,=8,9;868=270,*7-,>9185-270,.:>*52=B *7
@8;4270,.7?2;876.7=,@12,1,2<,/;..,/;86,-2<,;2627*=287,87,=1.,0;8>7-
<.A» <.A>*5 8;2.7=*=287»,-2<*+252=B,8;,*0. , =,*7=2,29*=.<,=1.,7..-<
6*4.<, ;.*<87*+5. *-3><=6.7=<,=8,6..=,=1.,<9.,2/2,,7..-<,8/,<=>-.7=<,
-2<*+5.-» [>7,=287*55B,-2<*+5.-,8,;,98<<.<<,<86.,8=1.;,9;8=.,=.-,<=*=:

5

$ #

5

#1. #,><=..<,,87/2;6,=1*= =1.B,1*?.,,86952.-, @2=1,=1.2;,->=2.<,>7-.;
#1.B,1*?.,,87<2-.;.-,=1.,9>+52, +.7./2=,0>2-*7,.,9>+52<1.- +B,=1., 1*;
=1.B,1*?.,/8558@.-,2=<,0>2-*7,.,27,=12<_*;.* #1. #;,><=..<L,;.98;=,
>7-.;,=*4.7 +B,=1., ;=,",1885,->;270,=1.,9.;28-,=8,/>;=1.;,2=<,,1*;2=*
<*=2</[2.-,=1*=,<>,1 *,=2722=2.<,9;8?2-.,9>+52, +.7./2=

% "# #

#1., ;=.",1885L< 27?2.<=6.7=<_*:. 6*7*0.- +B, *C.78?2., *92=*5_ *7%0.6.
1*< * 98;=/8528 8/ ,277.<=6.7=< @2=1_* 6*%;4.= _?2*5>. 27,5>-270_,%<1 *-
i)) » e

5

#1.;..*%,.,78, A=;* <=*=>=8;B,;.<=;2,=287<,87,=1., ;=,",1885L<,98@.;,:
<.=,+B,*7, 7?.<=6.7=, 8662==..,,.98;,=270,=8,=1., 8*;-, 8/, #;><=..<_ *7
27,86.,;.:>2;.6.7=<»_,=1.,;2<4,9;8/25. , *7-,=1.,27?.<=6.7=,6*7*0.;<L,?2
6.-2>6,=.;6 ,#1.,87?.;*55,27?7.<=6.7=,9852,B,2<,=8,9;8?2-.,=1.,5.?2.5,
@125<=,.7-.*?8>;270,=8,.7<>;.,=1*= 5870.;,=.;6,,*92=*5_ ?2*5>.<,68;.,
#1.,9.;/8;6*7,.,8/,=1.,98;=/8528,2<,;.?2.@.-,;.0>5*;5B, +B,=1., 7?.<=6.

2=B *7-, >25-<_8/, 87-87, ;="



27*7,2*5,1.?22.@

L o#t, L# (!

5

#1., ;=,",1885,;.,8;-.-,* <>;95>< +./8;.,7.=,58<<.<,87,27?2.<=6.7=<,8/,1
/18;,=1.,B.%; ,$7;.<=;2,=.-,/>7-<,;.,8;-.-:<>;95><,8/,I' » » *[=.;, *%--2=2
9;.62<.<,,8<=<,8/,*,7.@,5.*<.,*7-,<2072/2,*7=5B,1201.;,>=252=2.<,,8<

|.¥52<.- 0%27<.8/. 1 » > ,0%27< 8/ {725 *7-,>7;.*52<.-_ 58<<.<_ 8/

5

87.=1., ;=,",1885L<,272.<=6.7=<.@.;..;.,8,-.-.27,2=<_;.<=;2,=.- *7-_.7-

P 1% "

#1., 8*;-, 1*<, . A*627.-,=1.,;.:>2;.6.7=,18;,/;..,;.<.;?2.<,2 . ,=18<.,/>7-<
*<<.,=<»,78=,-.<207*=.-,1/8;,<9.,2/2,,9>;98<.<»,78=,;.<=;2,=.-,*7-,78*
27=.7-<,=8,*,12.2.» *<_,2;,>6<=*7,.<,9.;62=»_*7,27,;.*<.,27,=1.,/;..,;.
=8,9;8?2-.,52:>2-2=B,=8,6..=,*7B,/>=>;.,=.698;*;B,<18;=/*55<,27,27,
,¥92=*5 *< =1. * =2722=2.<,8/,=1., ;=,",1885,0;8@ , 7,=1.,6.*7=26.», =
=1.,.A9.7-*+5. . 7-8@6.7=<_,*7-,/;..,;.<.;?2.<,»*<_,*5 >5*= - + 58@wm,<18:

*;.,<*:2</2.-,:1*:,:12<52<’27’527.5@2:1,:1.’;_<.;?.<,9852,B . ,=*;O.
@8>5- +. -..6.-.¥99:89:2%=.

n #

5

#1., +*5*7,.,<1..=,<18@<,=8=*5_/>7-<,8/,1 » » > Iy » e [ #1
[>7-<,8/,1 » > i » @ ,6&125<=,=1.,27,86.,/;86,=1.<.,/>7-<,6

9>;98<.<,8/,=1., ;=,",1885» 9.;6*7.7=,.7-8@6.7=,/>7- +*5*7,.<_*:. ,>;
,*92=*5

" s

5<8,27,5>-.-, @2=127,=8=*5_/>7-<,2<,*7,*68>7=,8/,1 » ,@12,1,2<
6872.<,1*?., .2=1.;, +..7,;%2<.-,18;» *7-,=1.2;, ><.,2<,;.<=;2,=.-,=8»,<
-87*=287<,<>+3.,=,=8,-878; 2698<.-,,87-2=287< , .=*25< *7- *7 *7*5]
=1.<.,.7-8@6.7=,*7-,;,.<=;2,=.-,/>7-< ,*7 +.,/8>7-,27,78=.<, ,*7-, =8,

$7;.<=;2,=.- [>7-<»_ 8=1.; =1*7,=18<. 1.5- @2=127,.A9.7-*+5. .7-8@6

98<2=27.,98<2=287,8/,1 » > .98<2=272.. 0 » o  #1.<. [>7-<, *;
=*702+5. /2A.-, *<<.=<,8=1.;,=1*7,27?2.<=6.7=<_8/,1 » » b » e
A9.7-*+5. .7-8@6.7=<»_8/_1 » > i » o #1. #;><=..< 1*?. ,87

,87=.A=,8/,478@7, />=>;.,<8>;,.<,8/,27,86.», *7-, *5<8, . A9.7-*+5., .7
i » e @12,1,*;,. *?*25*+5, =8,9;872-.,52:>2-2=B,=8,=1., ;=,",188C
;.<.;?.<,98<2=287,=8,+.,*%,,.9=*+5,,27 =1.,,87=.A=,8/,=1.,;.<.;?.<,9852

2=B *7-, >25-<_8/, 87-87, ;="



% "# # Pl

5

>:270,=1. B.*;, =8, ., >0><=, .=1., 1%*;2=BL<, 27?.<=6.7=<,9;8->,.-

5 5

> [ » _*/=.;,=26270 *-3><=6.7=<0e *7-,* 7.=, ,*92=*5 58<< 8/ 1 »

5 5

#1. 277.<=6.7=_,6*7%0.;<,,87=27>.-,=8,272.<=,27,%,,8;-*7,., @2=1,=1. 4
2<,,.?72.@.-,+B,=1., 7?.<=6.7=, 8662==.. *7- =1., 8*;- *77>*55B» *7-

2772.<=6.7=_%*99;8%,1  #1. #;><=..<_ *,. <*=2<[2.- =1%=_=1.2; 27?2.<=6.7

9.:/8;6*7,..8/,=1.,27?2.<=6.7=<,27,=1.,,87=.A=_8/,.A2<=270,.,87862,,*7

8270, 87,.;7

#1. #;><=..<,1*?. *<<.<<.-, @1.=1.;,=1.,><.,8/,=1.,08270,,87,.;7,*<<>6"
=1.<.,/27*7,2*5, <=*=.6.7=< [ #1. #;><=..<,/1*?.,6*-.,=12<,*<<.<<6.7=,2
/;86,=1.,-*=.,8/,%*99;8?*5,8/,=1.<.,/27*7,2*5 <=*=.6.7=<_*7-,1*?., ,87<2.

e *=.<=,89.;*=287*5,95*7,/8;, =1.
8708270,.A=.;7*5,,1*55.70.<

e 1.?22<.-,4>-0.=,*7-,/27*7,2*5,/8;.,*<=270,/8;,=1.,/27*7,2*5 B.*;,
95*7 ,*<<8,2*=.-, @2=1,=1.,"=;*=.02,, 5*7,/8;,=1.,9.;28-,

e "=.9<,=*%4.7,27,9>;<>2=,8/,=1.,8+3.,=2?7.<,8/,=
;. >2=6.7=,=*;0.=<_*%;.,6.=

,.6%*27-.;,8/,=1.,,>;;.7=, R

5 " s 5 1

#1., ;=,",1885,6*7*0.6.7=L<,/8;.68<=,9;28;2=B,,87=27>.<,=8,+.,=8,<*
A9 2.7, ,%7-,.7<>;.,<=>-.7=,9;80;,.<<287 ,&2=1-;*@*5<,*7-, 7=.;;>9=2
?.;B,58@,5.?7.5<,*7-,=1.,;.9>=*=287,8/,=1., ;=,",1885,,87=27>.<,=8,;2
+.,2=<,5*;0.<=,B.=,*7-,@125. ,;>2=6.7=,27=8,=1., LV *-.62,,B.*;
<2072/2,*7=,/*55,27,7>6+.;<,87,=1., 8>7-*=287,,8>;<.,=1.,8>=5884,/8;
6*;4.=270,*,=2?22=2.<,>.<9.,2*55B,27,;.<9.,=,=8, 7=.;7*=287*5,<=>-.7:=
7.@,,8>;<.,*= -.0;..,5.?2.5, 7,8;-.,,=8,62=20*=.,,>;;.7=,/127*7,2*5, ,1*5¢
*18,><,8/,=1., ;=,",1885L<,<>,,.<</>5_/>7-;*2<270,*,=27?2=B,/8;,=1.,,>

5 1"

#8, 9:8?22-., *--2=287*5, @8;4270, ,*92=*5_<>998;=, 2/, 7..-.-», =1., ;=
8;87*?2,><, ><27.<<, 7=.;;>9=287, 8*7,",1.6.,=8,<.,>;.,*, ,58*7, 8,
9.:28-.8/, ,B.*;<_ /;86,/27*7,2*5_B.*;, .=.=1. . B.*; .7-.1 » .8/ =1
185-270<.@.;.,-.;2?.-./;86,=1., .58*7 |

#1., ;=,",1885,1.5-, /;..,;.<.;?2.<,8/,1 »  *< *=, >0><=, Lo

A9.7-*+5. . 7-8@6.7=<_*?*25%+5, =8 9;872-. *--2=287*5 [27*7,2*5_ <>9¢

7.5201=,8/,=1. *+82.» =1. #:><=..< 1*?. ,87,5>-.- =1%*=_=1.;. *,. 78
.2.7=<_,8;, ,87-2=287<,=1*=_6*B, ,*<=_<2072/2,*7=,-8>+=_87, =1. *+252
08270,,87,.;7

5

2=B *7-, >25-<_8/, 87-87, ;="



>=>;. 5*7<

#1., ;=,",1885, 1*< *-89=.- * "=:;*=.02, 5*7, ,@12,1,<.=<,8>=,
", 1885 27=.7-<.=8.6..= 2= ":;*=.02,, g8*5< 8/

.20, ;868=270.%,%.62, .A,.55.7,. *7-.27,;.%<.- 5.%;7270,8998;=>72=

2200, T1%7,270.25< <=5-.7= *7- <=*/[..AQ.;2.7,. +B,.7<>;270 2=<, 2"
vassaaas 075,810 ALBST, 0 NT -,

L2220 ,"*]. 0>* -270,*7-,,1*69287270,=1., ;=,",1885L<,.=18<_ *7-,?2*5>.
<>998;=270,/>=>;.,*6+2=287<

55 5 5

555 555 55

$7-.;,=1.,/2;<=,8/,=1.<., 8*5<» =1., ;=,",1885L<,8+3.,=27?2.<,*;.
=8,27,;.*<.,5.*%;7270,8998;=>72=2.<,+B,27,;.*<270,*7-,-2?.;<2/B270,
=8,27,;.*<.,5.*;7270,8998;=>72=2.<,=1;8>01, >;;2,>5>6,*7-, 8;=/852

5

#1., ;=,",1885L<,8+3.,=2?2.<,>7-.;,=1.,=12;-,8/,=1.,08*5< *;.
=8,<>998;=,<><=*27*+252=B,=1;8>01,269;87?.-, 27*7,2*5, .;/8;6*7,.
=8, .71*7,.,127*7,2*5, <><=*27*+252=B, =1;8>01, 27,;.*<.-, >7-; *2<2
;*2<270,=1., ;=,",1885L<,9>+52,,9;8/25.,=1;8>01,27,;.%*<.-,9*;=7.;<

,87.;%0. *7-.27,;.¥<270,8>;,9;.<.7,. *7- *,=2?22=B @2=127,=1.,58,*5,

. @255,,87<=2=>=. =1.,<.,87- B.*; 8/ =1. "=;%*=.02,, 5*7 *7-» *5=1
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The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and financial
statements of City and Guilds of London Art School Limited. to obtain an understanding of its
governance and legal structure. These are detailed and governed by the “How We Work”
Governance and Management Handbook.

The statement covers the period from 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the
date of the approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The Art School endeavours to conduct its business:

1. Having due regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 in so far as it is applicable
to the Higher Education Sector, and the Charities Act 2011.

2. Complying with Office for Students on-going conditions or regulations and terms of
conditions of funding as well as other regulatory responsibilities, in accordance with the
Higher Education Code of Governance.

We have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice
available, including tall relevant aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Higher
Education Code of Governance and the Charities Act 2011.

The Board of Trustees recognises that as a body entrusted with private funds, charitable funds
and public funds where received, it has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of
corporate governance at all times.

Legal Status
City and Guilds of London Art School Limited is a charitable company, limited by guarantee,
not having a share capital.

The Board of Trustees confirm that they have due regard for the Charity Commission’s
guidance on public benefit and that the required statement appears elsewhere within the
financial statements below.

The Board of Trustees
The members who served on the Board of Trustees during the year and up to the date of
signature of this report are listed below.

City and Guilds of London Art School Limited 19
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The Board of Trustees (continued)

Trustee Appointed / Resigned

Andrew Allen KC

Laurence Benson (Vice-Chair)

Nina Bilbey (Staff Trustee) Resigned 30 September 2022
Jamie Bill (Chair)

Dr Virginia Brooke

Dr Caroline Campbell

Edward Campbell-Johnston Appointed 26 October 2022
Paul Farmiloe (Student Trustee) Appointed 1 October 2023
Martin Hatfull

James Kelly

Tabish Khan Appointed 26 October 2022
Michael Osbaldeston

Dr Michael Paraskos (Staff Trustee) Appointed 1 October 2022

Prof Jane Rapley OBE

Theo Ritzinger (Student Trustee) Resigned 30 September 2023
Tina Roe (Student Trustee) Resigned 30 September 2022
Prof Elizabeth Rouse OBE

Dr Lois Rowe (Principal and Accountable Officer)

Alexander Stitt

Helen Sunderland-Cohen Appointed 26 October 2022
Benjamin Tucker Resigned 31 August 2023

Board of Trustees’ interests

The Board of Trustees are shown above and except for any instance mentioned above have
served throughout the year. Three members of the Board of Trustees have interests within
the organisation, including two salaried members of staff: the Principal (ex-officio Trustee),
the Staff Trustee (elected), and the Student Trustee (also known as Chair of Students); none
of them receive remuneration for their services as members of the Board.

The Company Secretary to the Board of Trustees maintains a register of financial and
personal interest of the members of the Board of Trustees, updated annually.

Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also directors of the Art School for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees’ report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of the
income and expenditure of the charitable company for that period.

City and Guilds of London Art School Limited 20
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Statement of corporate governance and internal control Year to 31 August 2023

Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities (continued)
In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

observe the methods and principles in Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement
of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102);

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable company will continue in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. Trustees
are also responsible for ensuring that the School continues to meet the conditions for Office
for Students registration, and also safeguarding freedom of speech and academic freedom.

Each of the Trustees confirms that:

so far as the Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

the Trustee has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Trustee in order
to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
charitable company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418
of the Companies Act 2006.

Meeting Procedures

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to the Board of Trustees in a timely manner,
prior to Board meetings. Reports include financial performance of the organisation together
with other information such as recruitment, academic and quality matters, personnel-related
matters, and health and safety matters. The Board of Trustees met 5 times in 2022/23. Full
minutes are kept of all meetings.

City and Guilds of London Art School Limited 21
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Year to 31 August 2023

Meeting Procedures (continued)

The Art School has a strong and independent non-executive membership on the Board of
Trustees and no individual or group dominates its decision-making process. The organisation
is satisfied that each of its non-executive members is independent of management and free
from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility between the roles of the Chair and Accountable
Officer.

Appointment to the Board of Trustees
Appointment to the Board of Trustees are matters for consideration of the Board of Trustees
as a whole, as advised by the Nominations Committee.

Board of Trustees Performance Oversight

The Board of Trustees exercise robust scrutiny of performance and challenge where
necessary. Board meetings provide the opportunity for thorough discussion of issues arising.
Trustees are pro-active in their oversight of the organisation and are involved in the planning
and discharging of Board business.

A review of individual Board members’ roles and contributions is conducted annually by the
Chair.

Committees

During the 2022-23 session, the Board of Trustees received advice on the conduct of its
business from four committees and the Academic Board. Each committee has its own terms
of reference, approved by the Board of Trustees. The committees were: Audit and Risk
Committee; Remuneration Committee; Investment Committee; and Nominations Committee.
In addition, a Joint Development Advisory Working Group supported the fundraising activity
of both the Art School and the Property Trust, a separate charity and landlord to the Art
School.

AUDIT and RISK INVESTMENT NOMINATIONS REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
Frequency of Minimum 4 p.a. 2p.a. Minimum 2 p.a. Minimum 2 p.a.
meetings
Chair Laurence Benson | James Kelly Caroline Campbell | Laurence Benson
Clerk Secretary to the Director of Secretary to the Secretary to the
Board Resources and Board Board
Operations
Trustees Virginia Brooke Laurence Benson | Andrew Allen Andrew Allen
Martin Hatfull Jamie Bill Jamie Bill
James Kelly Alex Stitt Martin Hatfull
Jane Rapley Ben Tucker Ben Tucker
Michael Staff Trustee Staff Trustee
Osbaldeston Student Trustee Student Trustee
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Year to 31 August 2023

Non-Trustee Humphrey Carey Humphrey Carey
Members (Property Trust) (Property Trust)
Tim Statham Rupert Asquith
In attendance Principal (ex- Head of Finance Principal (ex- Principal (ex-

officio Trustee) officio Trustee) officio Trustee)

Nick Orr,

Brendan Finucane | Cazenove Capital Director of

(former Trustee) Resources and
Director of Operations
Resources and Head of Finance

Operations

Head of Finance

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee was responsible to the Board of Trustees in discharging its
responsibilities for reporting its independent opinions on the risk management, controls,
governance, and value for money arrangements of the Art School. The Committee was
responsible for the following:

To appoint external auditors and agree the audit fee, meet with the external auditors to
discuss the scope and nature of the audit and to discuss the findings of the audit along
with the included management letter and management responses.

To review on a regular basis the Art School’s Risk Register, advise the Board of Trustees
of any significant changes/additions and to escalate any serious concerns to the Board.

To commission audit reviews of anything that could potentially threaten or adversely
affect the accomplishment of the aims and objectives of the Art School, or which
potentially could put the Art School at financial or reputational risk.

To ensure, on behalf of the Board of Trustees, that sound financial and governance
controls are in place, and effectively implemented, including the endorsement of the Art
School’'s Financial Regulations, Reserves Policies and arrangements for risk and
business continuity management.

A Site and Environment Sub-Committee  reporting to the Audit and Risk Committee was
tasked with overseeing all matters relating to risk management and compliance with legal
obligations relating to the physical, working and educational environments, including student
and staff welfare provision and the Health and Safety of all the Art School's members and
visitors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee provided oversight of strategic staffing matters and determined
policy on staff remuneration; and has delegated authority of the Board to determine the
schema for staff pay increases and to decide the remuneration of the Principal and Senior
Members of Staff.

City and Guilds of London Art School Limited 23
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Committees (continued)

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee oversaw the management of the Art School’s investment portfolio.
Under delegated authority of the Board of Trustees, the Investment Committee is responsible
for advising the Board on the appointment of the investment managers; for monitoring the
performance of the portfolio and the effectiveness of the investment strategy; and for ensuring
that the Art School’s investments are handled responsibly and ethically.

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee oversees the process for the recruitment and appointment of
members of the Board of Trustees and on the process for reviewing governance
effectiveness. It keeps under review policies and processes relating to membership of the
Board of Trustees including induction, training and development of the Trustees.

During the 2022-23 session, the Board commissioned an external consultant to undertake a
Governance Review in line with the expectations of the Office for Students and the Chairs of
University Councils (CUC) Higher Education Code of Governance. The Review made a
number of recommendations relating to the terms of reference and membership of the Board’s
committees which were duly adopted. From 2023-24, the Board of Trustees receives advice
on the conduct of its business from three committees: Audit & Risk, Finance & General
Purposes (and its two sub-committees: Investment and Remuneration), and Nominations. It
is also advised and informed by the Academic Board. Recently established, the Access &
Participation (a sub-committee of both Academic Board and the Board of Trustees) also
advises the Board. In addition, the Joint Development Advisory Group continues to support
the fundraising activity of both the Art School and the Property Trust, a separate charity and
landlord to the Art School.

Academic Board

The Academic Board is established by the Board of Trustees with delegated powers to
oversee the Art School’'s academic activities on its behalf and to be the its supreme academic
authority. Chaired by the Principal, the responsibilities delegated to Academic Board are to:

Uphold the academic standards of the Art School’s courses and the quality of its teaching
and student welfare provision.

Devise, maintain, amend, and in individual cases, suspend, the Student Regulations.
Recommend the appointment of External Examiners for validated provision.
Appoint External Examiners for non-validated provision.

Confirm the students’ results for those courses delivered independently of a validating
partner.

Elicit, receive and act upon student feedback.

City and Guilds of London Art School Limited 24
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Committees (continued)
Academic Board (continued)

Oversee all internal review and evaluation processes including periodic reviews by the
Office for Students (via the QAA).

Work to foster excellent relationships with the Art School’s validating partners.

Internal Control

Scope of responsibility

The Board of Trustees is ultimately responsible for the organisation’s system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system incorporates risk management and is
designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve academic, operational and financial objectives
and is designed to provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss,
covering such areas as educational standards, safeguarding, IT and data protection, Health and
Safety and Estates, HR matters and finance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as
Accounting Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the
achievement of the Art School’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the funds
received and assets. The Principal is responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees, through
the Audit and Risk Committee, any material weaknesses or failures in internal control.

The system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level and is based on
an on-going process of identifying and prioritising the risks to the achievement of Art School’s
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place at the Art School for the year ended 31 August
2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the organisation is exposed,
together with the operating, financial and governance controls that have been implemented
to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that an effective formal on-going
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Art School’s significant risks has been
in place for the year ended 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and financial statements.
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Internal Control (continued)

The risk and control framework

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information,
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and
accountability. It includes:

A comprehensive register of risks, updated and reviewed on a semi-annual basis
annual budgeting with an annual budget reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

periodic reviews by the Board of Trustees of management accounts and financial reports
which present and assess financial performance against budget and performance
indicators

Review of effectiveness

As the Accountable Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of
the system of internal control. The Principal's review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control is informed by:

the work of the external auditors;

the work of the Head of Finance and other staff who have responsibility for the
maintenance and development of the internal control framework;

comments made by the Art School’s financial statements and regularity auditors in their
management letters and other reports; and

advice provided by Trustees working through the Committees.
There are no significant internal control weaknesses reported for the period.

The Senior Management Team regularly reviews key performance and risk indicators and
considers possible control issues brought to their attention. The Audit and Risk Committee
receives regular reports, which include recommendations for improvement, and conducts an
annual review of the arrangements for internal control. The Board of Trustees’ agenda
includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from
the Audit and Risk Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance
and not merely reporting by exception.

Based on the above and on reports by the Principal, the Board of Trustees is of the opinion
that the Art School has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk
management and control to manage the achievements of the organisation’s objectives for the
year ended 31 August 2023 and it has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for "the effective and
efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution and the safeguarding of their assets”.
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Internal Control (continued)

Regularity, propriety, and compliance

The Art School has considered its responsibility to notify the Office for Students of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with Office for Students terms and conditions of
funding.

We confirm, on behalf of the organisation, that after due enquiry and to the best of its
knowledge, the Board of Trustees believes it is able to identify any material irregularity or
improper use of funds by the Art School's, or material non-compliance with terms and
conditions of funding under its financial regulations. As part of our consideration we have had
due regard to our financial regulations. If any instances are identified after the date of this
statement these will be notified to the Office for Students.

Going Concern
Details on the Board’s going concern assessment are set out on pages 16-17.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on and signed on its
behalf by:

Jamie Bill Dr Lois Rowe

Chair Principal and Acccountable Officer
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of City and Guilds of London Art School
Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of City and Guilds of London Art School Limited
(‘the charitable company’) for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the statement
of financial activities (including the statement of changes in reserves), the balance sheet, the
statement of cash flows, the principal accounting policies and the notes to the financial
statements. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August
2023 and of its income and expenditure, changes in reserves and cash flows for the year
then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with the financial reporting standards
(FRS102); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the trustees’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

the trustees’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Office for Students
In our opinion, in all material aspects:

where applicable, funds from whatever source administered by the provider for specific
purposes have been properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with
relevant legislation;

where applicable, funds provided by the Office for Students and by Research England
have been applied in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions; and

meet the requirements of the latest Office for Student’s Accounts Direction.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
trustees’ report. We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception (continued)
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

the trustees were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the
small companies regime and take advantage of the small companies’ exemptions in
preparing the trustees’ report and from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Office for Students
requires us to report to you where:

the charitable company’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in note 1 to these Financial
Statements, has been materially misstated.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement, the trustees are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either
intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures
are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Our

approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of

irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations;

we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framewaorks that are applicable
to the charitable company and determined that the most significant frameworks which
are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements are those that relate
to the reporting framework (Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and
Reporting by Charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
and the Charities Act 2011), Companies Act 2006, those that relate to data protection
(General Data Protection Regulation), certain conditions of OfS registration including
compliance with the OfS’ latest Accounts Direction; and

identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and
the team remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the charitable company’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

making enquiries of management as to their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged
fraud; and

considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

) 80:&. +,

performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting
estimates were indicative of potential bias;

used data analytics to investigate the rationale behind any significant or unusual
transactions;

tested authorisation controls on expenditure items, ensuring all expenditure was
approved in line with the charitable company’s financial procedures; and

performed substantive testing over fee income to gain assurance that the income
recognised was materially complete.
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Year to 31 August 2023

Year to Year to
31 August 31 August
2023 2022
General Restricted Endowment Total Total
fund funds funds funds funds
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and expenditure
Income and endowments from:
Charitable activities
Art School fees 1 2,845,816 — — 2,845,816 2,418,389
Donations and legacies 122,575 594,550 — 717,125 559,556
Investment income & interest received 2 46,784 13,086 — 59,870 2,904
Other 52,487 — — 52,487 46,058
Total income 3,067,662 607,636 — 3,675,298 3,026,907
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities
. Costs of operating the Art School
.. Teaching staff and personnel 6 1,207,582 44,669 112,175 1,364,426 1,277,003
.. Support costs 4 1,147,423 512 1,818 1,149,753 1,012,168
. Premises 592,562 27,532 — 620,094 441,045
. Promotions and publicity 3 71,902 — — 71,902 69,079
. Bursaries, scholarships and prizes 5 3,205 324,630 15,400 343,235 378,963
Total expenditure 3,022,674 397,343 129,393 3,549,410 3,178,258
Net income (expenditure) before
gains on investments and transfers 5 44,988 210,293 (129,393) 125,888 (151,351)
Net gains/(loss) on investments 10 — (14,934) (71,685) (86,619) (74,056)
Net income / (expenditure) and net
movement in funds 44,988 195,359 (201,078) 39,269 (225,407)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
RESERVES
Net income / (expenditure) and net
movement in funds 44,988 195,359 (201,078) 39,269 (225,407)
Reconciliation of Funds
Fund balances brought forward
on 1 September 2022 31,090 466,593 872,842 1,370,525 1,595,932
Fund balances carried forward
at 31 August 2023 76,078 661,952 671,764 1,409,794 1,370,525

All of the charitable company’s activities are derived from continuing operations during the

above two financial periods.

All recognised gains and losses are included in the above statement of financial activities.
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31 August 2023

2023 2023 2022 2022
Notes £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 263,237 180,961
Investments 10 1,551,893 1,582,721
1,815,130 1,763,682
Current assets
Stocks 11 15,676 23,826
Debtors 12 321,522 157,516
Cash at bank and in hand 1,036,116 1,188,823
1,373,314 1,370,165
Creditors : amounts falling due
within one year 13 (1,681,428) (1,628,316)
Net current liabilities (308,114) (258,151)
Creditors: amounts falling due
after one year 14 (97,222) (135,006)
Total net assets 1,409,794 1,370,525
Represented by:
The Funds of the Charity
Endowment funds 15 671,764 872,842
Income funds:
Restricted funds 16 661,952 466,593
Unrestricted funds:
General fund 76,078 31,090
1,409,794 1,370,525

Approved by the Board on

-DPLH %LOO

City and Guilds of London Art School Limited: A company limited by guarantee, Company

and signed on its behalf by:

'U /RLV 5RZH

Registration No. 07817519 (England and Wales)
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31 August 2023

Year to Year to

31 August 31 August

2023 2022

Notes £ £

Net cash flows from operating activities A (22,934) 342,476
Net cash flows from investing activities B (120,136) (152,996)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year (143,070) 189,480
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,223,242 1,033,762
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year C 1,080,172 1,223,242

Notes to the statement of cash flows for the year to 31 August 2023

A Reconciliation of net income (expenditure) to net cash (used in) provided by operating

activities

2023 2022

£ £
Net income (expenditure) 125,888 (151,351)
Depreciation charge 53,906 45,310
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (59,870) (2,904)
Effect of capitalisation of investment manager’s fees (2,330) (2,422)
Decrease in stocks 8,150 645
(Increase) decrease in debtors (164,006) 96,892
Increase in creditors 15,328 356,306
Net cash (used by) provided by operating activities (22,934) 342,476

B Cash flows from investing activities:

2023 2022

£ £

Dividends and interest from investments 59,870 2,904
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (136,182) (36,285)
Payments to acquire investments (658,859) (119,615)
Receipts from the disposal of investments 615,035 —
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (120,136) (152,996)

C Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

31 August 31 August

2023 2022

£ £

Cash at bank and in hand 1,036,116 1,188,823
Cash held by investment managers 44,056 34,419
1,080,172 1,223,242
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Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with items
initially recognised at cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant
accounting policy note(s).

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting
by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (‘Charities FRS 102 SORP’), the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Companies Act 2006
and the latest Office for Students’ Accounts Direction.

The Charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102.

The accounts are presented in sterling and are rounded to the nearest pound.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Preparation of the accounts requires the Trustees and management to make significant
judgements and estimates.

The items in the accounts where these judgements and estimates have been made include:

the useful economic lives attributed to tangible fixed assets used to determine the
annual depreciation charge;

the provision against doubtful and bad debts in respect to Art School fees; and

estimates in respect of accrued expenditure.

Going concern

The Trustees have assessed whether the use of the going concern assumption is
appropriate in preparing these financial statements. The Trustees have made this
assessment in respect of a period of one year from the date of approval of these financial
statements.

The Art School held free reserves of £380,616 as at 31 August 2023 (2022: £552,965)
inclusive of expendable endowments available to provide additional financial support and
liquidity to the Art School The Board intends to achieve, as circumstances permit, an
increase in the free reserves from present levels in order to provide liquidity to meet any
future temporary shortfalls in income and to provide adequate working capital. The Art
School now holds expendable endowments totalling £516,472 (2022: £702,836). These
expendable endowments are available to provide liquidity to the Art School if needed.

In light of the above, the Trustees have concluded that there are no material uncertainties
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Art School
to continue as a going concern.
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Income
Income is recognised in the period in which the Art School is entitled to receipt and the
amount can be measured with reasonable certainty.

Fees receivable and charges for services and use of premises are accounted for in the
period in which the service is provided. Fees receivable include contributions received from
restricted funds for scholarships, bursaries and other grants.

Donations are recognised when received and are only accrued where the Art School can
demonstrate entitlement to receipt and the amount is measurable and receipt is probable.

Investment income comprises dividends and interest receivable. Dividends are recognised
once the dividend has been declared and naotification has been received of the dividend due.
Interest payable on investment assets is recognised on an accruals basis.

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be
measured reliably by the Charity; this is normally upon natification of the interest paid or
payable by the bank.

Expenditure
Expenditure is included in the statement of financial activities when incurred and includes
attributable VAT which cannot be recovered. Expenditure comprises the following:

1 The costs of charitable activities involving expenditure on the Art School’s primary
charitable purpose, i.e. the operation of the Art School. In addition bursaries,
scholarships and prizes are given to students.

1.1 The costs of operating the Art School include the costs of premises, teaching
staff and personnel, support costs including governance costs, and costs of
promoting and publicising the Art School and its activities.

Included within support costs are 50% of the fees incurred in managing the
School’s investment portfolio. The remaining 50% of investment manager’s
fees are debited to the value of cash held by investment manager on the
balance sheet (note 10) and also deducted from unrealised investment gains.

1.2 Bursaries, scholarships and prizes payable by the restricted funds are
included in the statement of financial activities when approved, and when set
off against the fees to which they relate.

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive
obligation committing the Charity to make a payment to a third party, it is probable that a
transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation
can be measured reliably. Expenditure includes any attributable VAT which cannot be
recovered. All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis. Expenditure comprises
direct costs and support costs.
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Tangible fixed assets
All assets costing more than £250 and with an expected useful life exceeding one year are
capitalised.

Assets are included in these financial statements at cost at the date of acquisition together
with the cost of additions and improvements to date.

Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over
its estimated useful life:

Fixtures and fittings 10% on cost
Tools and equipment 20% on cost
Computer and hi-tech equipment 33% on cost

Website 20% on cost

Debtors
Debtors are recognised at the settlement amount, less any provision for non-recoverability.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid.

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand represents such accounts and instruments that are available on
demand or have a maturity of less than three months from the date of acquisition.

Creditors

Creditors are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result
of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in
settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Creditors are
recognised at the amount the Charity anticipates it will pay to settle the debt.

Investments

Investments are included on the balance sheet at their market value at the end of the
financial period. Realised and unrealised gains and losses are credited, or debited, to the
statement of financial activities in the year in which they arise.

Financial instruments
The Art School only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Art School and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets — trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt
instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 12. Prepayments are not
financial instruments.

Cash at bank — is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
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Financial instruments  (continued)

Financial liabilities — trade creditors, accruals, the loan and other creditors are financial
instruments, and are measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Taxation and social
security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income
is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stocks
Stocks, comprising artists’ materials for resale, are stated at cost.

Fund accounting
The general fund comprises those monies which may be used towards meeting the
charitable objectives of the Art School at the discretion of the Board.

The restricted funds are monies raised for, and their use restricted to, a specific purpose, or
donations subject to conditions imposed by the donor.

The endowment funds comprise both permanent and expendable endowments. Permanent
endowments are monies which must be held as capital indefinitely. The income therefrom
can be used for general purposes and is credited directly to unrestricted funds.

Expendable endowments are monies which were given to the Art School as capital but there
is no restriction on them being converted into expendable income.

Leased assets
Rentals applicable to operating leases, where substantially all of the benefits and risks of
ownership remain with the lessor, are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Pension costs
Contributions to employees’ personal pension plans are debited to the statement of financial
activities in the year in which they are payable to the relevant plans.
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Notes to the financial statements 31 August 2023

1 Grant and fee income

Year to Year to

31 August 31 August

2023 2022

£ £

Fee income for taught awards 2,845,816 2,418,389
Total grant and fee income 2,845,816 2,418,389

The School had no other types of grant and fee income as detailed in clause 23 of the Office

for Students Accounts Direction.

2 Investment income and interest receivable

Restricted Year to
and 31 August
General endowment 2023
fund funds total
£ £ £

Income from UK investments
. Unit trusts and common investment funds 45,031 13,086 58,117
Bank interest 1,753 — 1,753
46,784 13,086 59,870
Restricted Year to
and 31 August
General endowment 2022
fund funds total
£ £ £

Income from UK investments
. Unit trusts and common investment funds (7,575) 10,425 2,850
Bank interest 54 — 54
(7,521) 10,425 2,904

3 Promotion and publicity

Restricted Year to
and 31 August
General endowment 2023
fund funds total
£ £ £
Marketing 71,902 — 71,902
71,902 — 71,902
Restricted Year to
and 31 August
General endowment 2022
fund funds total
£ £ £
Marketing 69,079 — 69,079
69,079 — 69,079
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4  Support costs

31 August 2023

Restricted Year to
and 31 August
General endowment 2023
fund funds total
£ £ £
Staff costs 640,428 — 640,428
Equipment, IT and depreciation 163,373 — 163,373
Student materials and project expenses 138,495 — 138,495
Other support costs 153,909 2,330 156,239
Governance costs:
. Legal and professional fees 27,277 — 27,277
. Statutory audit services 17,820 — 17,820
. Non statutory audit services 6,120 — 6,120
1,147,422 2,330 1,149,752
Restricted Year to
and 31 August
General endowment 2022
fund funds total
£ £ £
Staff costs 581,712 — 581,712
Equipment, IT and depreciation 151,015 — 151,015
Student materials and project expenses 103,298 — 103,298
Other support costs 146,378 2,422 148,800
Governance costs:
. Legal and professional fees 10,233 — 10,233
. Statutory audit services 15,120 — 15,120
. Non statutory audit services 1,990 — 1,990
1,009,746 2,422 1,012,168
5 Net expenditure
This is stated after charging:
Restricted Year to
and 31 August
General endowment 2023
fund funds total
£ £ £
Staff costs (note 6) 1,864,854 140,000 2,004,854
Auditor’'s remuneration:
. Statutory audit services 17,820 — 17,820
. Non-statutory audit services 6,120 — 6,120
Depreciation and loss on disposals 49,163 — 49,163
Operating lease rentals
. Land and buildings 364,493 — 364,493
. Equipment 30,226 — 30,226
Bursaries, scholarships and prizes 3,205 324,630 327,835
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Notes to the financial statements 31 August 2023

5 Net expenditure (continued)
This is stated after charging:

Restricted Year to
and 31 August
General endowment 2022
fund funds total
£ £ £
Staff costs (note 6) 1,658,715 200,000 1,858,715
Auditor’'s remuneration:
. Statutory audit services 15,120 — 15,120
. Non-statutory audit services 1,990 — 1,990
Depreciation and loss on disposals 45,310 — 45,310
Operating lease rentals
. Land and buildings 295,224 — 295,224
. Equipment 29,241 — 29,241
Bursaries, scholarships and prizes — 378,963 378,963
Bursaries were paid to 67 individuals (2022 — 61) during the year.
6 Staff costs and Trustees’ remuneration
Year to Year to
31 August 31 August
2023 2022
£ £
Staff costs during the year were as follows:
Salaries 1,505,129 1,384,962
Social security costs 122,273 108,214
Pension 66,775 63,118
1,694,177 1,556,294
Self-employed tutors 298,767 283,308
Other staff costs 11,910 19,113

2,004,854 1,858,715

Staff costs analysed by function were as follows:

Year to Year to

31 August 31 August

2023 2022

£ £

Teaching 1,364,426 1,247,003
Support, administration and management 640,428 581,712

2,004,854 1,858,715

The average number of employees, all of whom are engaged in the operation of the Art
School, analysed by function and on a full time equivalent basis was:

Year to Year to

31 August 31 August

2023 2022

Teaching 31 30
Support, administration and management 15 13
46 43
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Notes to the financial statements 31 August 2023

6 Staff costs and Trustees’ remuneration  (continued)

The average number of employees, all of whom are engaged in the operation of the Art
School, was 86 (2022 — 88) for the year ended 31 August 2023. Many of these are employed
on a part-time basis.

The Principal’s total remuneration in the year ended 31 August 2023 was as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

Basic salary 87,000 72,709
Pension contribution 3,263 3,635
90,263 76,344

The Board of Trustees Remuneration Committee considers the case for annual pay
increases. The Principal is line managed by the Chair of the Board and their salary, together
with all other salaries, is considered by the Remuneration Committee with proposals made to
the full Board. The Principal and Director of Resources and Operations attend to provide
information. The Company Secretary is the Clerk to the Committee. The Principal, Director of
Resources and Operations and Company Secretary are not members of the Remuneration
Committee, and do not attend when their own salaries are under consideration. The Art
School has given regard to the Higher Education Senior Staff Remuneration Code published
by the Committee of University Chairs.

As at 31 August 2023, the Accountable Officer’'s basic salary was 2.62 times (2022 — 2.45
times) the median pay of staff, where the median pay is calculated on a full-time equivalent
basis for all staff contracted on an annual salary basis. There were no performance related
payments made to the Accountable Officer in 2022/23.

No Trustees received any remuneration or other emoluments in respect of their services as a
member of the Board during the year (2022 — none). In addition to the Accountable Officer,
there was one further Trustee who was employed by the School part-time in the year ended
31 August 2023 and received gross pay of £8,259 (2022 - £24,133) and employer’s pension
contributions of £413 (2022 - £1,207) in respect of that employment. No expenses were
reimbursed to Trustees during the year (2022 — none). The numbers of employees earning
greater than £60,000 during the year were as follows:

2023 2022

No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 1 —
£70,001 - £75,000 — 1
£85,001 - £90,000 1 —
2 1

Pension contributions in respect of these employees amounted to £ 6,272 (2022 — £3,635).

The aggregate remuneration, including employer's pension contributions paid to key
management personnel and employer’s national insurance, was £496,920 (2022 — £492,237).
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6  Staff costs and Trustees’ remuneration  (continued)

Key management personnel during the year consisted of the Principal, Director of Resources
and Operations, four academic Heads of Department, Head of Finance and the Head of
Development and External Relations.

The Art School has purchased insurance to protect itself from any loss arising from the neglect
or defaults of its Trustees, employees and agents and to indemnify the Trustees or other
officers against the consequences of any neglect or default on their part. The insurance
premium provided cover of up to a maximum of £2 million.

7 Comparative information
Analysis of income and expenditure in the year ended 31 August 2022 between restricted,
endowment and unrestricted funds:

Year to
31 August
2022
General Restricted Endowment Total
fund funds funds funds
Notes £ £ £ £
Income and expenditure
Income and endowments from:
Charitable activities
Art School fees 1 2,418,389 — — 2,418,389
Donations and legacies 150,535 409,021 — 559,556
Investment income & interest received 2 (7,521) 10,425 — 2,904
Other 46,058 — — 46,058
Total income 2,607,461 419,446 — 3,026,907
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities
. Costs of operating the Art School
.. Teaching staff and personnel 6 1,077,003 — 200,000 1,277,003
. Support costs 4 1,009,746 515 1,907 1,012,168
. Premises 441,045 — — 441,045
. Promotions and publicity 3 69,079 — — 69,079
. Bursaries, scholarships and prizes 5 — 366,413 12,550 378,963
Total expenditure 2,596,873 366,928 214,457 3,178,258
Net (expenditure) income before gains on
investments and transfers 5 10,588 52,518 (214,457) (151,351)
Net gains/(loss) on investments 10 — (14,690) (59,366) (74,056)
Net (expenditure) / income and net movement in
funds 10,588 37,828 (273,823) (225,407)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
Net (expenditure) / income and net movement in
funds 10,588 37,828 (273,823) (225,407)
Reconciliation of Funds
Fund balances brought forward
on 1 September 2021 20,502 428,765 1,146,665 1,595,932
Fund balances carried forward
at 31 August 2022 31,090 466,593 872,842 1,370,525
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Taxation

City and Guilds of London Art School Limited is a registered charity and therefore is not liable
to income tax or corporation tax on income derived from its charitable activities, as it falls

31 August 2023

within the various exemptions available to registered charities.

Tangible fixed assets

New
Fixtures and Tools and computer
fittings Website  equipment  equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2022 448,374 24,186 231,786 118,674 823,020
Additions 120,675 — 4,106 11,401 136,182
At 31 August 2023 569,049 24,186 235,892 130,075 959,202
Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 298,351 24,186 208,000 111,522 642,059
Charge for year 40,047 — 9,457 4,402 53,906
At 31 August 2023 338,398 24,186 217,457 115,924 695,965
Net book values
At 31 August 2023 230,651 — 18,435 14,151 263,237
At 1 September 2022 150,023 — 23,786 7,152 180,961
Investments
2023 2022
£ £
Listed investments and cash
Opening market value at 1 September 1,548,301 1,500,319
Additions 658,865 119,616
Disposals (643,725) —
Capitalised investment manager’s fees 2,330 2,422
Unrealised investment (losses) gains (57,934) (74,056)
1,507,837 1,548,301
Cash held by investment manager 44,056 34,419
Total market value of investments at 31 August 1,551,893 1,582,720
Cost of listed investments - 31 August 1,491,803 1,450,141
Listed investments and cash held at 31 August 2023 comprised the following:
2023 2022
£ £
Charity Multi Asset Funds 1,507,837 1,548,301
1,507,837 1,548,301
Cash held by investment managers 44,056 34,419
1,551,893 1,582,720
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Investments (continued)

All investments were dealt in on a recognised stock exchange.

At 31 August 2023, the following individual holdings were deemed material in the light of the

market value of the portfolios:

Market

% of value

portfolio £

Cazenove Charity Multi Asset Fund S Units GBP Distribution 70.1 450,286
SUTL Cazenove Charity Responsible 29.9 1,057,551

At 31 August 2022, the following individual holdings were deemed material in the light of the

market value of the portfolios:

Market
% of value
portfolio £
Cazenove Charity Multi Asset Fund S Units GBP Accumulation 16.5 256,072
Cazenove Charity Multi Asset Fund S Units GBP Distribution 54.5 843,823
SUTL Cazenove Charity Responsible 29.0 448,405

11 Stocks
2023 2022
£ £
Materials for resale 15,676 23,826

12 Debtors
2023 2022
£ £
Student fees outstanding 114,877 70,784
Other debtors 633 —
Prepayments and accrued income 148,607 86,732
City and Guilds Art School Property Trust 57,405 —
321,522 157,516

13 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2023 2022
£ £
Student fees in advance 1,324,291 1,308,408
Trade creditors 25,504 31,634
Taxation and social security 35,516 26,827
Other creditors 99,095 25,969
CBIL Loan 41,667 41,667
Accruals and other deferred income 155,355 126,934
City and Guilds Art School Property Trust — 66,877
1,681,428 1,628,316
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

2023 2022

£ £

CBIL Loan — payable between two and five years 97,222 135,006
97,222 135,006

The interest rate attached to the loan is based on a floating rate, and will be less than 2.9905%

per annum.

15 Endowment funds

The capital funds of the Art School include permanent endowments and expendable
endowments. The permanent endowments are comprised of monies which must be retained
as capital indefinitely. The expendable endowments are comprised of monies which were
given to the Art School as capital but there is no restriction on them being converted into

expendable income.

Atl Gains, At 31
September losses and August
2022 Income Expenditure transfers 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Permanent endowments
Edward Chadwyck-Healey
Bequest and Memorial Appeal
Fund 170,006 — (754) (13,960) 155,292
170,006 — (754) (13,960) 155,292
Expendable endowments
Margaret Ballardie bequest 298,357 — (112,175) (24,511) 161,671
Idun Ravndal Memorial
Legacy 237,665 — (15,000) (19,518) 203,147
Other endowments 166,814 — (1,464) (13,696) 151,654
702,836 — (128,639) (57,725) 516,472
Total endowments 872,842 — (129,393) (71,685) 671,764
The income from the endowment funds is included in unrestricted general funds.
Atl Gains, At 31
September losses and August
2021 Income Expenditure transfers 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Permanent endowments
Edward Chadwyck-Healey
Bequest and Memorial Appeal
Fund 179,814 — (499) (9,309) 170,006
179,814 — (499) (9,309) 170,006
Expendable endowments
Margaret Ballardie bequest 526,096 — (200,500) (27,239) 298,357
Idun Ravndal Memorial
Legacy 261,188 — (10,000) (13,523) 237,665
Other endowments 179,567 — (3,458) (9,295) 166,814
966,851 — (213,958) (50,057) 702,836
Total endowments 1,146,665 — (214,457) (59,366) 872,842
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16 Restricted funds
The income funds of the Art School include restricted funds comprising the following
unexpended balances of donations and grants held on trusts to be applied for specific

purposes:
Realised/

Balance Income unrealised Balance
atl from gains on at 31
September  invest- invest August
2022 ments Donations Expenditure -ments 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Annual Bursaries Fund 128,354 — 523,474 (355,596) — 296,232
Saul Bursary Fund 42,428 2,186 — (88) (3,478) 41,048
Charles Noble/Peter Chance Scholarship F 27,406 1,413 — (57) (2,250) 26,512
Rodney Burn RA Scholarship Fund 45,034 2,318 — (94) (3,690) 43,568
Simon Birch Memorial Bursary Fund 79,222 4,578 — (168) (1,392) 82,240
Edith and Stephen Burnett Memorial Fund 4,209 214 — 9) (341) 4,073
David Ballardie Memorial Award Fund 38,516 1,981 — (1,417) (3,153) 35,927
Idun Ravndal Travel Award 934 48 — (230) 77) 675
Other prize and special funds 15,462 348 14,876 (7,116) (553) 23,017
Books & Paper Conservation Project 85,028 — — (27,825) — 57,201
Recovery Appeal — — 56,200 (4,743) — 51,457
466,593 13,086 594,550 (397,343) (14,934) 661,952

Funds related to bursaries are now included in the top line “Annual Bursaries Fund”

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are given by their descriptions in
the table above. The main purposes are the awarding of scholarships, bursaries and prizes.

Realised/

Balance Income unrealised Balance

atl from gains on at 31

September  invest- invest August

2021 ments Donations Expenditure -ments 2022

£ £ £ £ £ £

Annual Bursaries Fund 25,107 — 395,260 (292,013) — 128,354
Saul Bursary Fund 44,196 1,699 — (1,073) (2,394) 42,428
Charles Noble/Peter Chance Scholarship F 27,890 1,072 — (46) (1,510) 27,406
Rodney Burn RA Scholarship Fund 45,831 1,761 — (76) (2,482) 45,034
Simon Birch Memorial Bursary Fund 80,705 3,102 — (214) (4,371) 79,222
Edith and Stephen Burnett Memorial Fund 4,283 165 — ()] (232) 4,209
David Ballardie Memorial Award Fund 41,734 1,604 — (2,562) (2,260) 38,516
Idun Ravndal Travel Award 2,055 79 — (1,089) (111) 934
Other prize and special funds 24,556 944 13,760 (22,468) (1,330) 15,462
Books & Paper Conservation Project 112,408 — — (27,380) — 85,028
Recovery Appeal 20,000 — — (20,000) — —
428,765 10,425 409,020 (366,928) (14,690) 466,593
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Notes to the financial statements

31 August 2023

17 Analysis of net assets between funds

General Restricted Endowment Total
fund funds funds 2023
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2023
are represented by:
Tangible fixed assets 211,934 51,303 — 263,237
Investments 224,342 655,787 671,764 1,551,893
Current assets 1,366,574 6,740 — 1,373,314
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year (1,629,550) (51,878) —  (1,687,593)
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (97,222) — — (97,222)
Total net assets 76,078 661,952 671,764 1,409,794
General Restricted Endowment Total
fund funds funds 2022
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2022
are represented by:
Tangible fixed assets 180,961 — — 180,961
Investments 243,286 466,593 872,842 1,582,721
Current assets 1,370,165 — — 1,370,165
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year (1,628,316) — — (1,628,316)
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year  (135,006) — — (135,006)
Total net assets 31,090 466,593 872,842 1,370,525

The total unrealised gains as at 31 August 2023 constitute movement on revaluation and are

as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

Unrealised (losses) gains included above
On listed investments as at 31 August 2023 (57,934) (74,056)
Reconciliation of movements in unrealised gains
Unrealised gains at 1 September 2022 265,710 339,766
Unrealised (losses) gains on listed investments arising in the year (57,934) (74,056)
Total unrealised gains at 31 August 2023 207,776 265,710

18 Liability of members

The Charity is constituted as a company limited by guarantee. In the event of the Art School
being wound up members are required to contribute an amount not exceeding £1 each.
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Leasing commitments

Operating leases
At 31 August 2023 the Art School had the following commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases:

Land and buildings Equipment

2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £

Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 367,785 190,063 31,101 31,714
Between two and five years 1,512,647 799,032 — 31,101
Over five years 796,338 864,898 — —
2,676,770 1,853,993 31,101 62,815

The land and buildings operating leases relate to the site at Kennington Park Road and the
sub-lease of premises in the Old Vauxhall Telephone Exchange in nearby Kennings Way from
the Property Trust for the period up to the first break clause. The previous lease for the latter
expired in late September 2022 and Heads of Terms for a new lease from the date of that
expiry were agreed at an increased rental which was duly accounted for in 2022/23.

Related party transactions

The City and Guilds Art School Property Trust has senior management in common with the
Art School. The Art School charged a management fee of £57,405 (2022 — £51,921) to the
Property Trust during the year. The Property Trust charged the Art School rent, including VAT,
of £364,493 (2022 — £300,369). The Trust charged no management fee to the Art School
(2022 — £14,376). No grants were received from the Property Trust in respect of the year
(2022 — £nil).

Post balance sheet events
There were no post balance sheet events to consider.
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